Design and Fabrication of Solar Electric Vehicle



By

Syed Amir Shah

(Registration No: 00000329195)

Department of Design and Manufacturing Engineering

School of Mechanical and Manufacturing Engineering

National University of Sciences & Technology (NUST)

Islamabad, Pakistan

(2024)

Design and Fabrication of Solar Electric Vehicle



By

Syed Amir Shah

(Registration No: 00000329195)

Department of Design and Manufacturing Engineering

A thesis submitted to the National University of Sciences and Technology, Islamabad,

in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

Master of Science in

Design and Manufacturing Engineering

Supervisor: Dr. Hussain Imran Jaffery

Co Supervisor: Dr. Dr. Hassan Abdullah

School of Mechanical and Manufacturing Engineering

National University of Sciences & Technology (NUST)

Islamabad, Pakistan

(2024)

THESIS ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Certified that final copy of MS/MPhil thesis written by Regn No. 00000329195 Syed amir Shah of School of Mechanical & Manufacturing Engineering (SMME) has been vetted by undersigned, found complete in all respects as per NUST Statues/Regulations, is free of plagiarism, errors, and mistakes and is accepted as partial fulfillment for award of MS/MPhil degree. It is further certified that necessary amendments as pointed out by GEC members of the scholar have also been incorporated in the said thesis titled. Design and fabrication of solar electric vehicle

Signature:

Name (Supervisor): Syed Hussain Imran Jaffery

Date: 15 - Apr - 2024



Signature (DEAN):	pit.		
Date: <u>15 - Apr - 2024</u>			



National University of Sciences & Technology (NUST) MASTER'S THESIS WORK

We hereby recommend that the dissertation prepared under our supervision by: <u>Syed amir Shah (00000329195)</u> Titled: <u>Design and fabrication of solar electric vehicle</u> be accepted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the award of <u>MS</u> in <u>Design & Manufacturing Engineering</u> degree.



CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

This is to certify that the research work presented in this thesis, entitled "Design and Fabrication of Solar Electric Vehicle " was conducted by Mr. Syed Amir Shah under the supervision of <u>Dr. Hussain Imran Jaffery.</u>

No part of this thesis has been submitted anywhere else for any other degree. This thesis is submitted to the Department of Design and Manufacturing Engineering in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science in Field of Department of Design and Manufacturing Engineering by Department of Department of Design and Manufacturing Engineering, National University of Sciences and Technology, Islamabad.

Student Name: Syed Amir Shah

Signature:



Examination Committee:

a) External Examiner 1: Name Signature:

(Designation & Office Address)

b) External Examiner 2: Name Signature:

(Designation & Office Address)

Supervisor Name:

Name of Dean/HOD:

AUTHOR'S DECLARATION

I <u>Syed Amir Shah</u> hereby state that my MS thesis titled "<u>Design and Fabrication of Solar</u> <u>Electric Vehicle</u>" is my own work and has not been submitted previously by me for taking any degree from National University of Sciences and Technology, Islamabad or anywhere else in the country/ world.

At any time if my statement is found to be incorrect even after I graduate, the university has the right to withdraw my MS degree.

Name of Student: Syed Amir Shah

Date: _____15/04/2024

Certificate for Plagiarism

It is certified that PhD Thesis Titled <u>"Design and manufacturing of solar electric vehicle"</u> by <u>Mr. Syed Amir Shah</u>, Regn. <u>No. 00000329195</u> has been examined by us. We undertake the follows:

- a. Thesis has significant new work/knowledge as compared to already publish or is under consideration to be published elsewhere. No sentence, equation, diagram, table, paragraph or section has been copied verbatim from previous work unless it is placed under quotation marks and duly referenced.
- b. The work presented is original and own work of the author (i.e. there is no plagiarism). No ideas, processes, results or words of others have been presented as Author own work.
- c. There is no fabrication of data or results which have been compiled/analyzed.
- d. There is no falsification by manipulating research materials, equipment or processes, or changing or omitting data or results such that the research is not accurately represented in the research record.
- e. The thesis has been checked using TURNITIN (copy of originality report attached) and found within the limits as per HEC Plagiarism Policy and instructions issued from time to time.

Signature of supervisor

-Sift-

Name of Supervisor: <u>Dr. Syed Husain Imran</u> Jaffery

DEDICATION

Dedicated to my exceptional parents and Teachers, whose tremendous support and cooperation led me to this wonderful accomplishment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I am profusely thankful to my beloved parents who raised me when I was not capable of walking and continued to support me throughout every department of my life.

I would also like to express special thanks to my supervisor Dr. Syed Husain Imran Jaffery for his help throughout my thesis. Your wealth of knowledge in the field of mechanical and automotive in particular is inspiring. Thank you for giving me the opportunity to flourish in this field of research. Without his help I wouldn't have been able to complete my thesis. I appreciate his patience and guidance throughout the whole thesis.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS		VIII
TABLE OF CONTENTS		IX
LIST OF TABLES		XI
LIST O	F FIGURES	XII
ABSTR	ACT	XIV
СНАРТ	TER 1: INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 I	Background	1
3.2.1	Ladder Frame Chassis	2
СНАРТ	TER 2 : LITERATURE REVIEW	6
СНАРТ	TER 3: METHODOLOGY	14
3.1 N	Method Overview	14
3.2 I	Design Methodology	15
3.2.1	Design Requirements and Specifications	15
3.2.2	Moment of Inertia	16
3.3 (CAD Model	19
3.4 I	FEA Analysis	22
3.4.1	Meshing:	22
3.4.2 Material Properties:		24
3.4.3 Torsional Stiffness		24
1.1	Bending Stiffness:	27
3.5 I	Final Design	31
3.6 N	Manufacturing of Solar Electric Vehicle	35
3.6.1	Material Selection and Market Survey:	35
3.6.2	Cutting and Shaping	35
3.6.3	Assembly:	35
3.6.4	Quality Assurance:	36
3.6.5 Integration with Vehicle Components:		36
3.6.6	Testing and Validation:	36

CHAPTER 4 : DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION	39
CHAPTER 5 REFERENCES	41

LIST OF TABLES

Page No.

Table 3.1: Material Properties of Steel
Table 3.2: Torsional Stiffness of all chassis type
Table 3.3: Weight of all chassis type

LIST OF FIGURES

-	
Figure 3.1: Overview of methodology	. 14
Figure 3.2: 3D CAD model of Square Cross Section Chassis	. 20
Figure 3.3: 3D CAD model of C-Section Cross Section Chassis	. 21
Figure 3.4: 3D CAD model of Circular Cross Section Chassis	. 21
Figure 3.5: 3D CAD model of Rectangular Cross Section Chassis	. 22
Figure 3.6: Meshing of chassis A) Rectangular, B) c section, C) circular, and D) rectangular.	. 23
Figure 3.7: Torsional displacement for A) square section and c-section B)	. 25
Figure 3.8: C) Circular Section, and D) Rectangular Section	. 26
Figure 3.9: Bending Load Applied on Chassis	. 28
Figure 3.10: Uniformly Distributed Load Applied on Chassis	. 29
Figure 3.11: FOS for Uniformly Distributed Load	. 29
Figure 3.12: Displacement for Bending Stiffness	. 30
Figure 3.13: Equivalent Stress for Bending Stiffness	. 30
Figure 3.14: Front Suspension	. 31
Figure 3.15: Rear Suspension	. 32
Figure 3.16: Steering System	. 33
Figure 3.17: Transmission and motor system.	. 34
Figure 3.18: Final Assembly	. 34
Figure 3.19: Testing and Validation	ied.
Figure 3.20: Final assembly	. 37

ABSTRACT

This thesis presents a comprehensive exploration into the design, fabrication, and realworld implementation of a solar electric vehicle (SEV) featuring a ladder frame chassis. Motivated by the increasing demand for environmentally sustainable transportation solutions, this study aims to revolutionize vehicle architecture by prioritizing economy, scalability, and adaptability. Beginning with meticulous design selections and CAD modeling, the ladder frame chassis was crafted to optimize structural integrity while minimizing weight. Inspired by nature's efficiency, the design strategy sought to strike a balance between weight reduction and robustness, facilitated by SolidWorks software. Subsequent finite element analysis (FEA) simulations using ANSYS software validated the chassis's structural performance and safety under static structural loads and torsional forces. Crucial parameters such as total deformation and stress distributions were scrutinized, affirming the chassis's resilience under diverse loading conditions. The culmination of this research involved the fabrication of the SEV and its successful road testing, underscoring the practical viability of the design. By translating theoretical concepts into tangible results, this thesis demonstrates the efficacy of the ladder frame chassis in real-world driving scenarios, affirming its potential to enhance both performance and safety. The study concludes with forward-looking perspectives, suggesting avenues for further refinement and optimization. Continued research into advanced materials, component arrangements, and performance evaluations promises to further enhance the SEV's efficiency and applicability in sustainable transportation systems.

Keywords: Ladder Frame Chassis, Solar Electric Vehicle, Sustainability.

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

Recently, there has been an increasing global concern over the reliance on fossil fuels and its negative effects on the environment (Johnsson et al., 2019, Abbasi et al., 2022, Holechek et al., 2022). The usage of conventional internal combustion engine cars not only has a substantial impact on the release of greenhouse gases but also exhausts limited fossil fuel reserves. The transportation industry significantly contributes to global greenhouse gas emissions and reliance on fossil fuels (Santos et al., 2021, Gheidan et al., 2022, Bieker, 2021, Leach et al., 2020). The transport industry was responsible for around 25% of worldwide energy-related carbon dioxide (CO₂) emissions in 2020, with road vehicles being the primary source (Zhou et al., 2019). The reliance on fossil fuels presents a substantial risk to the long-term viability of the ecosystem and exacerbates the issue of climate change (Hansen et al., 2013, Malhi et al., 2020, Turton and Barreto, 2006). In addition, the burning of fossil fuels emits pollutants that deteriorate air quality and negatively impact human health. As a reaction to these difficulties, the creation and acceptance of Sustainable Energy Vehicles (SEVs) has become a vital answer (Gaffney and Marley, 2009, Wang and Hao, 2012, Mobarak et al., 2020, Nawaz et al., 2024).

SEVs, namely electric vehicles (EVs), provide a hopeful substitute for traditional gasolinepowered automobiles. SEVs effectively minimize or eliminate tailpipe emissions by employing electric power, so mitigating air pollution and minimizing the carbon footprint associated with mobility. Moreover, the use of renewable energy sources to power SEVs significantly improves their ecological sustainability. SEVs provide a multitude of possible advantages (Zhang et al., 2018, Hossain et al., 2022, Falahi et al., 2013, Tseng et al., 2013):

- SEVs provide a substantial contribution to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and addressing climate change by eliminating the usage of fossil fuels.
- Diminished dependency on fossil fuels: SEVs mitigate dependence on limited oil supplies and enhance energy security.
- Enhanced air quality: Electric motors generate zero tailpipe emissions, resulting in a more pristine atmosphere in metropolitan areas.

• Reduced operational expenses: SEVs have decreased fuel and maintenance costs in comparison to gasoline cars.

The chassis is of utmost importance in ensuring the structural integrity and performance of a SEV. The chassis serves as the foundation on which all other elements, including the drivetrain, suspension, and body panels, are attached (Tseng et al., 2013). The chassis of electric cars must not only provide structural support but also fit the specific needs of these vehicles, such as the positioning of batteries and the distribution of weight. Traditional chassis type include:

3.2.1 Ladder Frame Chassis

A ladder frame chassis is composed of two parallel longitudinal rails, often referred to as "rails," that are connected by lateral cross members. This design has a combination of simplicity, robustness, and long-lastingness, making it highly suitable for demanding uses like trucks and off-road vehicles. Nevertheless, ladder frame chassis are often characterized by their increased weight and reduced rigidity in comparison to other designs, resulting in potential consequences for handling and fuel economy (Christensen and Bastien, 2016).

3.2.2 Monocoque Chassis:

A monocoque chassis is a kind of vehicle frame where the body and structure are integrated into a single unit, providing strength and rigidity. Monocoque chassis, or unibody architecture, combines the body and chassis of a vehicle into a single structure. This design provides enhanced stiffness and handling properties, which contribute to higher performance and safety. Monocoque chassis are often used in passenger automobiles and high-performance vehicles because of their lightweight design and adaptability (Gudmundsson, 2014).

When evaluating chassis options for SEVs, certain criteria are considered:

i. **Strength and Durability:** Ladder frame chassis are well-known for their sturdy design, providing great resilience and longevity. Their strong structural integrity makes them ideal for bearing the extra weight of battery packs and electric powertrain components in SEVs (Gurjar et al., 2019).

- ii. **Customization and Versatility:** SEV manufacturers may easily modify ladder frame chassis to fit multiple battery configurations or vehicle layouts without affecting structural integrity because to its modular nature (Dagdeviren et al., 2016, Muthyala, 2019a).
- iii. Cost Effectiveness: Ladder frame chassis are often more economical to produce in comparison to intricate monocoque designs. The affordability of SEVs may result in reduced manufacturing expenses, hence increasing their accessibility to a broader spectrum of customers (Mgbemena et al., 2019, Singh et al., 2014).
- iv. **Repairability and Maintenance:** When there is damage or a collision, ladder frame chassis are often more convenient and cost-effective to fix in comparison to monocoque constructions. SEV owners may minimize downtime and maintenance costs by replacing or repairing individual components without the need for substantial disassembly of the vehicle. Furthermore, the modular structure of the ladder frame chassis allows for easy access to vehicle components, making regular maintenance jobs like battery replacement or drivetrain inspection simpler.

1.3 Problem Statement

The automobile industry worldwide is now experiencing a significant change towards sustainable transportation solutions to tackle issues related to reliance on fossil fuels, environmental consequences, and the long-term availability of energy. As a result of this fundamental change in thinking, the creation of Solar Electric Vehicles (SEVs) has become a potential approach to decrease greenhouse gas emissions, encourage the use of renewable energy, and improve energy efficiency in urban transportation.

Although there is increasing interest and investment in SEV technology, there is still a notable lack of research and development focused on creating practical, easily accessible, and economically feasible SEV solutions. The current SEV prototypes often encounter difficulties associated with intricate design, expandability in manufacturing, optimization of performance, and cost-efficiency, which restrict their extensive acceptance and market reach.

This thesis intends to tackle these problems by concentrating on the design and construction of a Solar Electric Vehicle (SEV), with a particular emphasis on the creation of a ladder frame

3

chassis. The ladder frame chassis of the SEV functions as the structural base, providing support for crucial components like the electric powertrain, battery pack, and solar panels. It also ensures ideal weight distribution, longevity, and safety.

1.3 Aims & Objectives

The objective of this thesis is to create, manufacture, and verify a prototype of a Solar Electric Vehicle (SEV), with a specific emphasis on designing a ladder frame chassis to serve as the vehicle's main structural support. The main goal is to showcase the practicality and effectiveness of combining solar power technology with electric propulsion systems to provide a sustainable and eco-friendly method of urban transportation.

Specifically, the objectives include:

- Conduct a comprehensive literature survey on types of chassis frames, their stiffness characteristics, and suitable materials for solar electric vehicles.
- Utilize computer-aided drafting (CAD) software to generate multiple design iterations of the ladder frame chassis.
- Employ finite element analysis (FEA) to evaluate and refine the chassis designs and choose the design iteratively to satisfy key acceptance criteria like weight, strength, and stiffness.
- Select the final chassis design based on a combination of weight optimization through FEA.
- Fabricate the chosen chassis and assemble the complete solar electric vehicle using costeffective and modular components.

1.1 Research Questions

- What are the primary criteria to consider when choosing a chassis type, such as ladder frame or space frame, for a solar electric vehicle, considering aspects like weight, rigidity, and ease of manufacturing?
- What are the common materials used in ladder frame construction for solar electric vehicles, and how do their properties (strength, weight, cost) influence the design process?
- How can finite element analysis (FEA) be used efficiently to improve the design of a ladder frame chassis for a solar electric vehicle, achieving a balance between reducing weight and maintaining structural integrity?

• What are the anticipated performance measures, such as range, efficiency, and handling, for the solar electric vehicle after it is equipped with the ladder frame chassis that has been designed?

CHAPTER 2 : LITERATURE REVIEW

Electric vehicles (EVs) have witnessed significant advancements over the past few decades, spurred by concerns over environmental sustainability and the need to reduce dependence on fossil fuels (Soares et al., 2018, Cao et al., 2021, Delucchi et al., 2014, Sperling, 2013). The history of EVs dates to the 19th century, with notable milestones including the invention of the electric car by William Morrison in the 1830s and the introduction of mass-produced electric vehicles in the early 20th century (Fattal, 2019). However, widespread adoption of EVs has been hindered by factors such as limited battery range, high costs, and inadequate charging infrastructure (Adhikari et al., 2020, Li et al., 2017).

In recent years, advancements in battery technology, electric drivetrains, and charging infrastructure have accelerated the adoption of EVs worldwide. The global EV market has experienced rapid growth, driven by government incentives, regulatory mandates, and increasing consumer awareness of environmental issues. Electric vehicles are now seen as a key solution to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and mitigating the impacts of climate change (Delucchi et al., 2014, Ellingsen et al., 2016, Zhang and Fujimori, 2020, Hill et al., 2019, Nanaki and Koroneos, 2016).

Solar vehicle technology has emerged as a promising solution for sustainable transportation, harnessing the power of the sun to generate clean, renewable energy. Over the years, significant progress has been made in the development of solar-powered vehicles, ranging from solar cars and bicycles to larger vehicles such as buses and trucks. Advances in solar panel efficiency, lightweight materials, and aerodynamic design have improved the performance and practicality of solar vehicles. Notable examples include the Solar Impulse aircraft, which completed a historic flight around the world powered solely by solar energy, and the World Solar Challenge, an annual solar car race that showcases the latest innovations in solar vehicle technology.

Previous research on solar electric vehicles (SEVs) has focused on various aspects of design, fabrication, and performance evaluation. Studies have explored different approaches to integrating solar panels into vehicle design, optimizing energy efficiency, and enhancing overall performance. Research projects such as the Stella Lux solar car and the Lightyear One solar electric vehicle have demonstrated the feasibility of SEVs for everyday transportation, achieving

impressive range and efficiency using solar power alone. Challenges such as limited energy storage capacity and variable weather conditions continue to be areas of active research and innovation in the field of SEVs (López et al., 2019, Sarkar et al., 2014, Waseem et al., 2019, Mobarak et al., 2020).

The key components of solar electric vehicles include chassis, solar panels, battery systems, electric motors, and power management systems.

2.1 Chassis types

The chassis serves as the backbone of a SEV, providing structural integrity, supporting vehicle components, and ensuring safety. Principles of chassis design prioritize factors such as structural strength, weight distribution, and aerodynamics to optimize performance and efficiency (Mobarak et al., 2020). Various chassis architectures, including monocoque, ladder, and space frame designs, are employed in SEVs, each offering unique advantages in terms of weight savings, rigidity, and manufacturability (Reimpell et al., 2001). A ladder frame chassis is a classic and time-honored design that consists of two parallel longitudinal rails joined by lateral cross members. This design offers outstanding resilience and the ability to support enormous loads, making it ideal for demanding uses like trucks and off-road vehicles. Ladder frame chassis provides a straightforward and uncomplicated approach to building and fixing vehicles, enabling convenient access to vehicle parts and simple alterations. Nevertheless, these chassis design typically exhibit greater weight and reduced rigidity, resulting in potential repercussions for vehicle maneuverability and fuel economy.

A ladder frame chassis consists of two longitudinal rails, usually constructed from high-strength steel or other resilient materials, that extend from the front to the rear of the vehicle, forming its main framework. The rails serve as the primary structural support for the vehicle's body, engine, drivetrain, suspension, and other components. Typically, they are straight and have a box-shaped cross-section to provide sufficient strength and rigidity. The lateral cross members, which are commonly welded or bolted at a right angle to the longitudinal rails, serve to link and reinforce the two rails. The purpose of these cross members is to evenly distribute loads and strengthen the chassis against torsional pressures. Ladder frame chassis are renowned for their uncomplicated design and durability. The design exhibits exceptional endurance and load-bearing capacity,

rendering it highly suitable for demanding applications such as trucks, SUVs, and off-road vehicles. The open frame design enables convenient access to vehicle components, hence enabling maintenance, repair, and alterations. This level of accessibility is especially beneficial in commercial and industrial settings where continuous operation and dependability are of utmost importance (Reimpell et al., 2001, Vignesh et al., 2022, Kunwar et al., 2023).

The production of ladder frame chassis is quite simple, involving basic welding and assembling methods. This straightforwardness enhances cost-efficiency and expandability in the manufacturing process. Ladder frame chassis offer remarkable strength and longevity, rendering them well-suited for challenging terrains and substantial loads. The ladder frame chassis's modular design enables convenient customization and adjustment to accommodate various vehicle kinds and uses. The open frame design enables easy access to vehicle components, streamlining maintenance and repair procedures. Ladder frame chassis are frequently more cost-effective to produce in comparison to intricate monocoque designs, resulting in reduced production expenses for cars (Christensen and Bastien, 2016, Patel and Patel, 2012).

2.2 Moment of inertia and Stiffness

Torsional stiffness, bending stiffness, and moment of inertia are crucial mechanical parameters in vehicle chassis design that greatly influence the performance and behavior of the vehicle (Danielsson et al., 2016, Barari et al., 2011).

Torsional rigidity refers to the ability of the chassis to withstand twisting or deformation caused by applied torque, such as while turning corners or driving on uneven terrain. A chassis possessing significant torsional stiffness preserves its structural integrity and stability, guaranteeing that the wheels sustain ideal contact with the road surface. Consequently, there is an enhancement in the vehicle's handling, responsiveness, and ride comfort due to the maintenance of a sturdy and stable chassis, which decreases the amount of body roll and enables more accurate steering control (Velie, 2016, Sampò, 2011, Belloni et al., 2024).

Bending stiffness, also known as flexural rigidity, is the capacity of the chassis to withstand bending or flexing when subjected to external forces. The feature in question is of utmost importance in preserving the shape and structural strength of the chassis, particularly when it is exposed to forces like crashes or uneven road surfaces. A chassis possessing a high degree of bending stiffness ensures that loads are uniformly distributed across its structure, hence limiting deformation and offering robust support for both vehicle components and people. This results in greater ride comfort, decreased vibration, and improved ability to withstand crashes, since the chassis maintains its rigidity and resilience throughout different driving situations (Kobelev, 2019, Sampò, 2011).

Moment of inertia pertains to the arrangement of mass in relation to an axis of rotation. The moment of inertia in chassis design directly affects the rotational reaction and agility of the chassis. A reduced moment of inertia indicates that the chassis has a smaller amount of mass spread farther from its rotating axis, leading to a faster rotational reaction and enhanced agility. This enables the vehicle to alter its direction more rapidly, enhancing the capacity to make sharper turns and improving stability, especially during high-speed maneuvers.

Attaining the ideal equilibrium of torsional rigidity, bending stiffness, and moment of inertia is essential in chassis design to guarantee the integrity of the structure, precision in handling, and overall performance of the vehicle. Engineers utilize sophisticated materials, implement geometric optimization techniques, and incorporate structural reinforcements to customize chassis designs for specific vehicle applications, ultimately improving safety, comfort, and driving experience. Through meticulous evaluation of these mechanical characteristics, chassis engineers can build automobiles that offer exceptional performance, stability, and ride comfort in many driving scenarios.

2.3 Materials

Material selection for chassis construction plays a pivotal role in achieving desired performance characteristics while minimizing weight and cost. (Desai et al., 2019) Common materials utilized in SEV chassis include aluminum alloys, high-strength steels, and advanced composites, each offering a balance of strength, stiffness, and weight savings. Steel is the preferred material for constructing car chassis due to its combination of essential characteristics that make it extremely suitable for this important part. The material's inherent robustness, longevity, and stiffness enable it to endure the various pressures and weights encountered by a vehicle while in use (Galos and Sutcliffe, 2020, ALVALI et al., 2021). The robustness of the chassis guarantees that it will keep its structural integrity over the lifecycle of the vehicle, offering crucial protection for both

occupants and vehicle components. In addition, steel provides a superb ratio of strength to weight, enabling the creation of chassis designs that are both lightweight and structurally efficient. This, in turn, enhances fuel efficiency, driving dynamics, and overall performance. Moreover, steel's cost-efficiency in comparison to alternative materials such as aluminum or carbon fiber composites renders it a financially feasible option for chassis construction. In Pakistan, the abundant availability of steel facilitates local production and industrial expansion, hence decreasing reliance on imports and fostering economic sustainability (Babu et al., 2020, Desai et al., 2019). Utilizing domestically sourced steel resources improves the practicality and cost-effectiveness of automobile manufacturing in the country, providing a favorable and beneficial choice for vehicle producers. Therefore, the combination of steel's inherent characteristics and its easy accessibility in Pakistan strengthens its position as the favored material for chassis construction, enabling the manufacturing of long-lasting, efficient, and economically viable vehicles designed to meet the specific demands of the local market (Ramteke et al., 2022, ALVALI et al., 2021, Desai et al., 2019).

2.4 Connectivity

Techniques for chassis fabrication encompass a range of processes, including welding, forming, CNC machining, and additive manufacturing, enabling the realization of complex geometries and optimized structures (Li et al., 2024).

When constructing a ladder chassis, the connection between cross-members and longitudinal rails is achieved through a combination of bolts and welding. Welding, a process that joins two metal parts using heat generated by gas or electricity, plays a crucial role in chassis fabrication. Different types of weld joints, including butt, lap, corner, T, and edge weld joints, are utilized based on the type and magnitude of the expected load, whether shear or torsional. Safety precautions, such as wearing welding gloves and a protective helmet, are essential to prevent injuries. Cleaning, maintaining a clean workplace free of flammable materials and ensuring the availability of fire extinguishers are crucial safety measures (Muthyala, 2019b, Leelakar and Krishnaraj, 2021).

One commonly used welding technique in chassis construction is resistance spot welding, which is a thermo-electric process. This method generates heat at the connection point between two components by passing an electric current through them for a controlled duration. The resistance between the components and the electrode generates the required heat, causing the metal to melt at the junction. Within seconds, the molten metal solidifies, forming a durable weld joint between the two components. This process ensures the structural integrity and reliability of the chassis, allowing it to withstand various loads and operating conditions encountered during vehicle use (Rajarajan et al., 2022, Jou, 2001, Tanco et al., 2015).

Bolting plays a crucial role in the manufacturing of ladder frame chassis, complementing welding as a method of securing components together. In the construction of a ladder frame chassis, bolts are used to join cross-members and longitudinal rails, providing mechanical strength, and facilitating ease of assembly and disassembly. Unlike welding, which permanently fuses metal parts together through heat, bolting allows for a more modular approach to chassis construction. This modularity enables manufacturers to easily replace or modify chassis components as needed, simplifying maintenance, repairs, and customization (Smith et al., 2006, Prasad U et al., 2020).

The use of bolts in chassis construction offers several advantages. Firstly, it provides flexibility in design and assembly, allowing for rapid prototyping and iteration. Bolted connections can be easily adjusted or repositioned during assembly, ensuring precise alignment and fitment of chassis components. Additionally, bolting allows for the incorporation of removable components, such as body panels or accessory mounts, facilitating accessibility for servicing and upgrades.

2.1 Integration of SEV

Integrating solar panels into the design of SEVs presents opportunities for augmenting onboard energy generation and extending vehicle range. Solar panels can be mounted on various vehicle surfaces, including the roof, hood, and integrated into body panels, maximizing exposure to sunlight. Efficiency considerations, such as panel type, orientation, and tracking systems, influence the amount of energy harvested and its utilization for propulsion or auxiliary systems. Solar panels are typically mounted on the vehicle's surface to capture sunlight and convert it into electrical energy. Advanced battery systems are used to store excess energy generated by solar panels for use during periods of low sunlight or high energy demand (Morais et al., 2015, Mojumder et al., 2022, Bower et al., 2011, Atallah et al., 2016).

Despite the potential benefits of solar power integration, challenges and limitations persist, including limited energy generation capacity, storage constraints, and practicality issues. The intermittent nature of solar irradiance and the limited surface area available for solar panels pose challenges to achieving meaningful energy gains. Moreover, the integration of solar panels adds complexity and cost to vehicle design, raising questions about cost-effectiveness and scalability (Al Shaqsi et al., 2020, Al-Shahri et al., 2021, Castillo and Gayme, 2014).

Battery technology serves as a cornerstone of SEV development, with various options such as lithium-ion, nickel-metal hydride, and solid-state batteries offering different performance characteristics. Advances in battery management systems (BMS) enable precise state-of-charge estimation, thermal management, and cell balancing, enhancing overall battery efficiency and longevity. Ongoing research efforts focus on improving safety, reducing costs, and enhancing sustainability through battery recycling initiatives (Zhao et al., 2021, Fan et al., 2020).

The suspension system plays a critical role in vehicle dynamics, influencing ride comfort, handling, and stability. Various suspension architectures, including independent, semiindependent, and dependent systems, are utilized in SEVs, with material considerations ranging from steel and aluminum to advanced composites. Integration of suspension design with vehicle weight distribution and aerodynamics optimizes overall vehicle performance and efficiency.

Electric motors provide propulsion for the vehicle, delivering power to the wheels efficiently and quietly. Power management systems regulate the flow of energy between the solar panels, battery, motor, and other electrical components, optimizing performance and efficiency. Recent developments in SEV components have focused on improving energy storage capacity, reducing weight, and enhancing overall system reliability (Chan and Wong, 2004, Kumar and Jain, 2014, Cao et al., 2019, Gieras and Bianchi, 2004).

SEVs contribute to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and advancing sustainable transportation goals through their low-carbon footprint and reliance on renewable energy sources. Life cycle assessments highlight the environmental impact of SEVs, from embodied energy and manufacturing emissions to end-of-life disposal considerations. Sustainable materials and

manufacturing processes, including the use of recycled materials and eco-friendly techniques, further enhance the environmental sustainability of SEVs, aligning with global efforts to combat climate change and promote sustainable development.

Despite the progress made in solar vehicle technology, several challenges remain to be addressed to realize the full potential of SEVs. Limited range, energy storage capacity, and charging infrastructure are among the most significant barriers to the widespread adoption of SEVs. Additionally, the high cost of solar panels and batteries presents economic challenges for consumers and manufacturers alike.

However, ongoing research efforts aimed at overcoming these challenges offer promising opportunities for the future of SEVs. Advances in battery technology, lightweight materials, and solar panel efficiency are expected to improve the performance and viability of SEVs in the coming years. Furthermore, the environmental and economic benefits of SEVs, including reduced greenhouse gas emissions and long-term cost savings, underscore their potential as a sustainable transportation solution.

CHAPTER 3 : METHODOLOGY

3.1 Method Overview



Figure 3.1: Overview of methodology.

3.2 Design Methodology

3.2.1 Design Requirements and Specifications

The design task at hand entails the creation of a four-passenger vehicle with a strict maximum chassis weight limit of 150kg. This limitation is foundational to maintaining the overall vehicle weight within the designated 1000kg threshold, factoring in the weight of passengers, battery pack, and other essential components. The weight of each passenger, estimated between 75-100kg, underscores the importance of integrating these weights into the design process to ensure the vehicle's structural integrity and safe operation.

To uphold safety standards, the chassis must weigh less than 150kg, preventing excessive stress on the vehicle's frame and components. Likewise, the overall vehicle weight should not exceed 450kg to maintain optimal performance and manoeuvrability. Prescribed dimensions, including a maximum length of 3500mm and width under 1500mm, are crucial for meeting regulatory standards and practical usability. The specified wheelbase of 2460mm, mirroring that of the Suzuki Alto 2016 model, ensures stability and compatibility with existing design principles.

A factor of safety (FOS) of 7 or higher is mandated to provide a margin of safety against structural failure under varying operating conditions, prioritizing occupant protection and vehicle durability. Stiffness requirements, with bending and torsional stiffness set at 3 KN/mm and 3 KN/degree respectively, are derived from literature to guarantee adequate rigidity and responsiveness while navigating different road conditions.

Mild steel is chosen as the material for its cost-effectiveness and favorable fatigue strength, striking a balance between performance and affordability. Emphasizing modularity and cost efficiency in the design process facilitates ease of manufacturing, assembly, and maintenance, aligning with industry standards and market demands.

The prescribed speed range of 80-100 km/h corresponds to typical urban and suburban driving conditions, ensuring the vehicle's suitability for everyday use. Detailed specifications for motor power and battery capacity remain implicit but are critical for achieving desired performance metrics and range capabilities.

Finally, the requirement for the chassis cross-sectional shape to have a moment of inertia equal to or greater than 4652167mm⁴ drives exploration into various design configurations, including circular, square, rectangle, and C-section chassis. This criterion influences structural integrity and weight distribution, influencing vehicle dynamics and handling characteristics.

3.2.2 Moment of Inertia

To effectively withstand transverse and lateral loads, it's crucial for the beam to possess a significant moment of resistance. This resistance factor is intricately linked to the moment of inertia, which essentially measures the beam's ability to resist bending under load. A higher moment of inertia signifies a greater resistance to loading forces. To discern which cross-section offers the highest resistance, a calculation of the moment of inertia for each cross-sectional shape with equal areas is required. This analysis helps in selecting the most structurally sound option for the given application.

Moment of inertia for all hollow square cross sections:

$I = (a_0{}^4 - a_i{}^4)/12$

- a₀ is the outer width of the square tube (the outer side length of the outer square).
- a_i is the inner width of the square tube (the outer side length of the inner square).

Moment of inertia for all c section:

$I = (bh^3 - (b-t_f).(h-t_w)^3)/3$

- b is the overall width of the C-section.
- h is the overall height of the C-section.
- t_f is the thickness of the flange.
- t_w is the thickness of the web.

Moment of inertia for all hollow circular cross section:

$I = pi. (D_0^4 - D_i^4)/12$

- D_0 is the outer width of the square tube (the outer side length of the outer square).
- D_i is the inner width of the square tube (the outer side length of the inner square).

$I = ((b_1 h_1^3 - b_2 h_2^3)/12) + A_1 d_1^2 + A_2 d_2^2$

- *b*₁ and b₂ are the widths of the top and bottom flanges, respectively.
- h_1 and h_2 are the heights of the top and bottom flanges, respectively.
- A_1 and A_2 are the areas of the top and bottom flanges, respectively.
- *d*₁ and *d*₂ are the distances from the centroid of the section to the centroid of the top and bottom flanges, respectively.

According to these formulas, the following dimensions are selected for the initial designs of all chassis.

i. Square Cross-Section (Chassis no. 1):

- This cross-section is characterized by equal sides, resulting in a square shape.
- The total length and width of this cross-section are 3430 mm and 1500 mm, respectively.
- The moment of inertia, a measure of an object's resistance to changes in rotation, is calculated as 4933660 mm⁴.
- The thickness of this cross-section is 5 mm.
- The section height and width are both 120 mm.

ii. C-section Cross-Section (Chassis no. 2):

- This cross-section resembles the letter 'C' and is commonly used in structural applications.
- The total length and width of this cross-section are 3363 mm and 1494 mm, respectively.
- The moment of inertia for this cross-section is 4757160 mm^4.
- It has a thickness of 6 mm.
- The section height and width are 150 mm and 55 mm, respectively.

iii. Circular Cross-Section (Chassis no. 3):

- This cross-section is circular in shape.
- The total length and width of this cross-section are 3375 mm and 1445 mm, respectively.
- The moment of inertia is calculated as 4797340 mm⁴.
- It has a thickness of 7.5 mm.
- The section height (diameter) is 125 mm, and the width is 111 mm.

iv. Rectangular Cross-Section (Chassis no. 4):

- This cross-section is characterized by unequal sides forming a rectangle.
- The total length and width of this cross-section are 3394 mm and 1505 mm, respectively.
- The moment of inertia for this cross-section is 4860160 mm^4.
- It has a thickness of 4.8 mm.
- The section height is 150 mm, and the width is 96 mm.

After the initial design phase, the final selection of the chassis cross-section will be determined based on a combination of factors including weight and Factor of Safety (FOS).

Factor of Safety (FOS) is a measure used to account for uncertainties in materials, manufacturing, and loading conditions. It represents the ratio of the maximum load a component can withstand to the maximum load it is expected to experience during normal operation. A Factor of Safety greater than 7 indicates a sufficient margin of safety for the chassis design.

Once the initial designs are completed, Computer-Aided Design (CAD) modeling and Finite Element Analysis (FEA) will be conducted. CAD modeling will allow for the creation of detailed digital representations of the chassis designs, while FEA analysis will simulate real-world conditions and assess the structural performance of each design under various loads and operating conditions.

During the FEA analysis, factors such as stress distribution, deformation, and overall structural integrity will be evaluated. The final design will be selected based on achieving the lowest weight while maintaining a Factor of Safety greater than 7.

This approach ensures that the selected chassis design not only meets the required structural strength and performance criteria but also optimizes weight to enhance efficiency and performance in its intended application.

3.2.3 Cross Members

The chassis's longitudinal rails are interconnected via cross-members, which play a pivotal role in supporting vital components like the engine, transmission system, suspension system, and axles. These cross-members also contribute significantly to the chassis's rigidity. While conventional design norms propose that integrating more cross-members can bolster the chassis's durability, it's essential to place them thoughtfully. Random placement won't suffice; strategic positioning is key to minimizing stress and displacement. Furthermore, optimizing the cross-members' design to boost rigidity is crucial for effectively withstanding loads and mitigating stress and displacement.

Proper positioning of each cross-member is paramount to ensure uniform stress and displacement reduction across the chassis while maintaining sufficient stiffness to enhance overall performance. It's critical to keep the cross-members' thickness less than that of the longitudinal rails to prevent issues such as strains at connection points and structural deformations.

The design of a ladder chassis incorporates specific elements:

- 1) The front end is designed to be narrow to facilitate better steering lock and enhance the turning radius.
- 2) The rear end is broader and slightly elevated to accommodate rear axle movement, particularly on uneven terrain.
- 3) The longitudinal rails are inwardly bent at both ends to allow for wheel movement.

Various types of cross-members, including C-type sections, tubular sections, hat sections, box sections, and stamped pressed sections, can be utilized based on the required strength at different locations. Through iterative design iterations, the optimal positions for cross-members are determined, followed by necessary adjustments to enhance strength, such as altering thickness or reshaping. In instances where increasing thickness poses challenges, additional supports are provided to the cross-members.

3.3 CAD Model

3.3.1 Cad model of chassis

The initial designs are modelled in accordance with the initial calculations and design criteria. Cross members are selected and modelled based on their suitability for the chassis. SolidWorks is employed for 3D modelling purposes. These models will subsequently undergo Finite Element Analysis (FEA) to evaluate their structural integrity and performance, ultimately informing the final design of the chassis.

i. Square Cross-Section (Chassis no. 1):

This square cross-section measures 3430 mm in length and 1500 mm in width, with a thickness of 5 mm. It has a section height and width of 120 mm. The moment of inertia is calculated at 4933660 mm⁴, indicating its resistance to rotational changes.



Figure 3.2: 3D CAD model of Square Cross Section Chassis

ii. C-section Cross-Section (Chassis no. 2):

This 'C' shaped cross-section, commonly used in structural applications, measures 3363 mm in length and 1494 mm in width, with a thickness of 6 mm. It has a section height of 150 mm and a width of 55 mm. The moment of inertia for this cross-section is 4757160 mm⁴, indicating its resistance to rotational changes.



Figure 3.3: 3D CAD model of C-Section Cross Section Chassis

iii. Circular Cross-Section (Chassis no. 3):

This circular cross-section, measuring 3375 mm in length and 1445 mm in width, features a thickness of 7.5 mm. Its section height, or diameter, is 125 mm, and the width is 111 mm. The moment of inertia is calculated at 4797340 mm⁴, indicating its resistance to rotational changes.



Figure 3.4: 3D CAD model of Circular Cross Section Chassis

iv. Rectangular Cross-Section (Chassis no. 4):

This rectangular cross-section, featuring unequal sides, measures 3394 mm in length and 1505 mm in width, with a thickness of 4.8 mm. Its section height is 150 mm, and the width is 96 mm. The moment of inertia for this cross-section is calculated at 4860160 mm⁴, indicating its resistance to rotational changes.



Figure 3.5: 3D CAD model of Rectangular Cross Section Chassis 3.4 FEA Analysis

The SolidWorks-designed CAD model of the ladder chassis undergoes Finite Element Analysis (FEA). To streamline the process, unnecessary fillets and holes are removed from the CAD model, reducing computational time. The simplified model is then imported into Ansys software for FEA.

3.4.1 Meshing:

Meshing is a critical operation in the realm of Finite Element Analysis (FEA), involving the meticulous subdivision of the Finite Element model into smaller, well-organized elements. Within this context, the process of meshing the chassis assumes significant importance, given its direct correlation to the precision and reliability of FEA outcomes. To ensure the utmost

accuracy in meshing and subsequently in FEA results, it is imperative to uphold stringent quality standards, encompassing parameters such as warpage, Jacobian, aspect ratio, and skew ratio.

Considering the diverse geometric complexities inherent in chassis design, tailored meshing methods are employed to address each unique cross-sectional configuration. Across all meshes, a quadratic element order is uniformly adopted to maintain consistency and accuracy. Furthermore, an automated approach is integrated into the fabrication process, specifically for rectangular cross members, ensuring a standardized mesh size of 20mm.

In the pursuit of dependable analysis, the Tetrahedron technique emerges as the preferred methodology for both chassis and cross members alike, characterized by its effective utilization of a 20mm element size. This comprehensive approach not only underscores the meticulousness required in meshing operations but also highlights the commitment to achieving precise and reliable FEA results within the realm of chassis engineering.



Figure 3.6: Meshing of chassis A) Rectangular, B) c section, C) circular, and D) rectangular.

3.4.2 *Material Properties:*

In crafting this chassis model, steel is chosen for its robustness, with longitudinal rails, brackets, and cross-members all fashioned from this durable material. Within Ansys, each component is meticulously assigned mechanical properties sourced from the following Table 3.1.

Values

Density	7850 kg/m3
Young's Modulus	2e+05 MPa
Poisson's ratio	0.3
Tensile Yield Strength	200 MPa
Tensile Ultimate Strength	460 MPa

Table 3.1: Material Properties of Steel

Property

3.4.3 Torsional Stiffness

Considering the real-world setup, loads and boundary conditions are carefully factored in. These conditions are structured to induce twisting in the chassis. Typically, loads are applied to the axle in reality. However, for Finite Element Analysis (FEA), loads are positioned at corresponding locations along the longitudinal rails instead of directly on the axle. To induce chassis twist, positive and negative forces are applied at the front end, while the rear end of the chassis is fully constrained, preventing any movement in translation or rotation. This mirrors real-world loading conditions within the FEA environment.

Enhancing the vehicle's handling necessitates greater torsional stiffness, especially crucial for navigating uneven terrain and pothole-ridden roads. To calculate torsional stiffness, the total Gross Vehicle Weight (GVW) is selected as the load applied to the chassis, typically 800 kgs. GVW represents the maximum load capacity of the vehicle. Thus, to achieve a stiffer chassis, the load applied is equivalent to the GVW. Therefore, the load acting on the chassis for torsional

loading equals 800 kg, or 8000 N. Distributing this load evenly, each longitudinal rail bears a force of 4000 N.

All the initially designed chassis are gone through an analysis for torsional stiffness and the directional displacements are measured accordingly as shown in figure:



Figure 3.7: Torsional displacement for A) square section and c-section B).



Figure 3.8: C) Circular Section, and D) Rectangular Section

All chassis designs passed the initial torsional stiffness test, exceeding the minimum requirement of 3kN-m/deg as can be seen in the table. However, weight is now the primary factor for selecting the final design. The acceptance criteria specify a maximum weight of 150 kg for the entire chassis.

Chassis	Type of Cross	Displacement	Angel	Torsion	K
no.	Section	(mm)	(degrees)	(kNm)	(kNm/deg)
	-				
1	Square	2.9802	0.294401526	2320	7.880
2	C-section	6.2437	0.514730453	2780	5.401
3	Circular	1.0217	0.097973387	2390	24.394
4	Rectangular	1.3483	0.285589282	1082	3.789

 Table 3.2: Torsional Stiffness of all chassis type

 Table 3.3: Weight of all chassis type

Chassis no.	Type of Cross Section	Weight (kg)
1	Square	245
2	C-section	479
3	Circular	456
4	Rectangular	92

Considering steel as the material, the weight analysis of each chassis design reveals that only the rectangular chassis meets the weight requirement. Therefore, the rectangular chassis is chosen for further evaluation and will undergo bending stiffness testing.

1.1 Bending Stiffness:

i. Boundary conditions and loads for bending stiffness

To determine the bending stiffness of a rectangular chassis, it is simulated in real-world conditions in which the chassis is subjected to bending forces. In this scenario, they secure both

the front and rear ends of the chassis to restrict any movement in all directions (X, Y, Z-axis), ensuring a stable reference frame. Next, a bending load is applied to the chassis. In this case, the load is applied at the center of both longitudinal rails, which are the long beams running the length of the chassis. This load mimics the weight or payload that the chassis might carry during operation, in this instance specified as 800 kg or 8000 N.

Since the load is evenly distributed between the two longitudinal rails, each rail carries half of the total load, resulting in 4000 N per rail. This distributed load induces bending stresses within the chassis structure.



Figure 3.9: Bending Load Applied on Chassis

An analysis of bending under uniformly distributed load is conducted on the chassis, with the payload weight applied to the main rails. The objective is to achieve a safety factor exceeding 7 as per acceptance criteria.



Figure 3.10: Uniformly Distributed Load Applied on Chassis

ii. Results from Bending Stiffness Analysis:

For uniformly distributed loading, the factor of safety exceeds 7, resulting in safe chassis:



Figure 3.11: FOS for Uniformly Distributed Load

The displacement for the bending stiffness condition is depicted in the figure. The obtained displacement value, 1.0197 mm, represents how much the chassis deforms or bends when

subjected to the specified load. To calculate the bending stiffness from this displacement, the following formula is utilized:



Bending Stiffness = 4000/1.0197 = 3922.722 N/mm = 3.922 kN/mm

Figure 3.12: Displacement for Bending Stiffness

The stress distribution obtained for this specific loading condition is depicted in Figure, showcasing a stress value of 314.81 MPa under the bending loading. Upon analyzing the obtained value of bending stiffness, it surpasses the predefined acceptance criteria. Consequently, this design meets the required standards regarding bending stiffness. As a result, rectangular chassis, utilizing steel material, is confirmed as the final choice for this application.



Figure 3.13: Equivalent Stress for Bending Stiffness

3.5 Final Design

This chapter delves into the culmination of the design journey – the finalized chassis and its integrated components. Through meticulous analysis, iterative refinement, and innovative thinking, a design that embodies both performance and practicality has been selected. This chapter provides a comprehensive overview of the chassis design, along with the integration of essential components such as the front and rear suspension systems, transmission, motor, steering system, and more.

• Front Suspension:

Integration of the front suspension system into the chassis was a critical aspect of the design process, impacting both vehicle performance and handling characteristics. The chosen front suspension configuration, a double wishbone system, was carefully integrated to optimize weight distribution and enhance dynamic responsiveness. The double wishbone suspension components were strategically positioned within the chassis to achieve optimal alignment and geometry. By carefully considering factors such as caster angle, camber angle, and kingpin inclination, the team ensured precise handling and stability under varying driving conditions. Additionally, the integration of the front suspension components was designed to minimize unsprung mass, improving overall ride quality and responsiveness.



Figure 3.14: Front Suspension

• Rear Suspension

The incorporation of a leaf spring suspension system at the rear of the vehicle was a deliberate choice to balance performance, durability, and cost-effectiveness. This traditional suspension design offers simplicity in construction while providing sufficient load-bearing capacity and stability, making it suitable for a wide range of applications. The leaf spring assembly was carefully positioned and mounted within the chassis to optimize load distribution and suspension geometry. The spring mounts were strategically placed to ensure proper alignment and articulation, allowing the leaf springs to flex and absorb road irregularities effectively. Additionally, the rear axle was positioned to align with the leaf springs, ensuring optimal weight distribution and load transfer during acceleration, braking, and cornering maneuvers.



Figure 3.15: Rear Suspension

• Steering System:

The integration of the steering system into the chassis is fundamental to the vehicle's maneuverability and driver control. The chosen steering system, typically a rack and pinion setup, is meticulously integrated to provide precise steering input and responsiveness. The steering rack, along with associated components such as tie rods and steering linkages, is strategically positioned within the chassis to optimize driver ergonomics and vehicle dynamics. The steering column is securely mounted to the chassis, providing a direct connection between the driver's input and the vehicle's front wheels. Proper alignment and connection ensure that steering inputs are translated accurately into vehicle movement, enhancing driver confidence and control.



Figure 3.16: Steering System

• Transmission and motor system:

The integration of the transmission and motor system into the chassis is pivotal in ensuring optimal power delivery, efficiency, and overall performance of the vehicle. This section explores how these components are seamlessly integrated to drive the vehicle's propulsion. The transmission and motor assembly are strategically positioned within the chassis to optimize weight distribution and drivetrain efficiency. Typically, the transmission is mounted directly to the engine block or positioned adjacent to it, while the electric motor may be located at various points along the chassis, depending on the vehicle's layout. Proper alignment and mounting ensure that power is transmitted efficiently from the motor to the wheels, maximizing traction and performance. The transmission serves as the interface between the motor and the drivetrain, converting the motor's rotational energy into forward or reverse motion. Depending on the vehicle's configuration, the transmission may be coupled to the motor via a direct drive system or through a gearbox with multiple gear ratios. The integration of the transmission and motor into the drivetrain ensures smooth power delivery across various driving conditions, optimizing acceleration, efficiency, and top speed.



Figure 3.17: Transmission and motor system.

• Final Assembly

The fully assembled model represents the culmination of meticulous design and integration efforts, where every component comes together harmoniously to form a cohesive and functional vehicle. The chassis serves as the structural backbone, accommodating components such as suspension systems, transmission, motor, and steering system, ensuring optimal performance and safety. Integrated front and rear suspension systems provide stability and ride comfort, while the transmission and motor system deliver smooth and responsive propulsion. The steering system enables precise control, while seats and gear knob enhance comfort and driving experience. Overall, the fully assembled model embodies innovation, functionality, and driver satisfaction through careful design and integration.



Figure 3.18: Final Assembly

3.6 Manufacturing of Solar Electric Vehicle

The manufacturing of the chassis for the solar electric vehicle in Pakistan commenced following the final selection of chassis based on initial research and market survey findings. This section outlines the detailed steps involved in the fabrication process, emphasizing the rationale behind the chosen techniques and materials.

3.6.1 Material Selection and Market Survey:

At the outset of the research, a thorough market survey was conducted to identify locally available materials suitable for chassis construction. Factors such as material availability, cost-effectiveness, and mechanical properties were carefully assessed. Based on this survey and preliminary research, high-strength steel emerged as the optimal choice for its affordability and widespread availability in the local market. The required materials were procured from trusted suppliers with a focus on quality and reliability.

3.6.2 Cutting and Shaping

The steel sheets were cut and shaped using basic cutting tools to match the dimensions specified in the finalized design. Precision was maintained through manual measurement and cutting techniques to ensure proper fitment during assembly.

3.6.3 Assembly:

In the meticulous assembly of the chassis components, a deliberate selection process guided the choice of assembly techniques. Drawing upon a wealth of expertise and industry best practices, a combination of nuts, bolts, and spot-welding techniques was meticulously chosen. Skilled craftsmen meticulously executed the assembly process, ensuring precision and reliability at every stage.

The integration of a DC controller paired with a robust 7.5KW motor marked a pivotal step in the vehicle's propulsion system. Through meticulous engineering, the motor was seamlessly integrated into the transmission system, facilitated by a carefully engineered coupler plate. To mitigate potential sources of instability, the motor was securely affixed in place with the aid of vibration fixtures, ensuring minimal vibration during operation. This selection of assembly techniques and propulsion components was informed by a comprehensive evaluation of various factors. Considerations such as structural integrity, performance optimization, and operational efficiency were meticulously weighed, guiding the decision-making process. By prioritizing reliability, functionality, and adherence to industry standards, the chosen assembly methods and propulsion system configuration lay a solid foundation for the vehicle's performance and longevity.

- Accessibility and Cost: Nuts, bolts, and spot-welding equipment are readily available in local markets and are cost-effective compared to more specialized assembly methods.
- Ease of Assembly: Nuts and bolts offer flexibility during assembly, allowing for adjustments and disassembly if needed. Spot welding provides a quick and efficient means of joining metal components, particularly suitable for large-scale production.
- Strength and Durability: When properly executed, nuts, bolts, and spot welding create strong and durable joints, essential for ensuring the structural integrity of the chassis under dynamic loads.

3.6.4 Quality Assurance:

Throughout the assembly process, quality control checks were conducted to verify the integrity and dimensional accuracy of the chassis. Visual inspections and measurements were performed to identify any defects or inconsistencies, ensuring compliance with design specifications.

3.6.5 Integration with Vehicle Components:

Upon completion of the chassis, it was integrated with all the necessary components required for the solar electric vehicle. This included mounting points for the battery pack, motor, suspension system, and other vital components essential for vehicle operation.

3.6.6 Testing and Validation:

Upon completion of its assembly, the solar electric vehicle underwent a series of exhaustive tests to validate its performance and functionality. Methodical road tests were conducted to assess the vehicle's handling, stability, and overall operational capabilities. Adherence to stringent

acceptance criteria, notably including achieving and sustaining a speed of 100 kilometers per hour, affirmed its readiness for road use.

Additionally, a rigorous load test was implemented to evaluate the structural integrity of the vehicle's chassis under realistic conditions. By subjecting the chassis to an 800-kilogram load, meticulous observations were made to detect any signs of bending or deformation. The results demonstrated that the vehicle's chassis remained within the allowable range of deformation, confirming its durability and reliability under significant loads.

These thorough testing procedures underscore not only the engineering excellence of the solar electric vehicle but also its preparedness for real-world deployment. Through meticulous adherence to performance benchmarks and structural integrity standards, the vehicle stands as a testament to technological innovation, poised to navigate diverse road conditions with confidence and efficiency.



Figure 3.19: Testing and Validation



Figure 3.19: Final Assembly

Above is the final assembly of the solar electric vehicle with all of its components assembled on the ladder frame chassis, i.e., controller, motor, mountings, transmission system, steering system, tires with rim, suspension system, lithium ion battery pack, and seats.

CHAPTER 4 : DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

The culmination of this study marks the successful realization of the objectives set forth at its inception. Through a comprehensive literature survey, types of chassis frames, their stiffness characteristics, and suitable materials for solar electric vehicles were meticulously examined, providing a robust foundation for subsequent design and analysis.

Employing computer-aided drafting (CAD) software SolidWorks, multiple iterations of the ladder frame chassis were generated and evaluated against stringent acceptance criteria. Finite element analysis (FEA) served as a critical tool in refining chassis designs, ensuring compliance with key parameters such as weight, strength, and stiffness. The iterative design process culminated in the selection of the final chassis design, which met all acceptance criteria while optimizing weight through FEA-driven iterations. The chosen ladder frame chassis design successfully met the specified acceptance criteria, including modularity for weight distribution, a target gross weight under 150kg, and factors of safety (FOS) exceeding 7. Additionally, the bending stiffness surpassed 3KN/mm, while torsional stiffness exceeded 3KN/deg, ensuring structural robustness and performance. The total vehicle weight remained under the prescribed 450kg limit, further validating the design's efficiency and effectiveness.

Propulsion of the solar electric vehicle (SEV) is provided by electric batteries supplemented by solar energy, aligning with the specified capacity for sustainability and environmental consciousness. The SEV comfortably accommodates four passengers while boasting a maximum speed of 100 km/h, meeting performance expectations without compromising safety or efficiency. The integration of all components, including the manufactured ladder frame chassis, marks a significant milestone in the realization of the SEV. By translating theoretical concepts into tangible results, this study underscores the practical viability and real-world applicability of the designed chassis.

Looking ahead, further refinement and optimization may be pursued to enhance the SEV's efficiency, performance, and cost-effectiveness. Continued research into advanced materials,

component arrangements, and performance evaluations promises to further elevate the SEV's position as a sustainable transportation solution for the future.

Research into electric vehicle (EV) chassis development in Pakistan serves as a cornerstone of knowledge, offering invaluable insights within the parameters of its defined scope. However, it is paramount to acknowledge the boundaries of this research endeavor. While commendable progress has been achieved in conducting crash analysis, the pursuit of vehicular safety mandates a more expansive exploration encompassing diverse collision scenarios. Only through such comprehensive simulations can we ensure the robustness of passenger safety measures and uphold stringent regulatory standards.

At the core of the study lies a meticulous examination of welded joints between chassis components—a pivotal nexus where theoretical engineering principles intersect with practical realities. Yet, as we endeavor to push the boundaries of knowledge forward, we are confronted with the intricate complexities inherent in real-world applications. Real-world welded joints embody a tapestry of challenges, characterized by stress concentrations and potential failure points. Addressing these complexities requires a concerted effort involving empirical validation and the deployment of advanced simulation methodologies.

Looking towards the future, the vista expands, beckoning us to bridge the gap between theory and application. Real-world testing emerges as a beacon of validation, shedding light on the efficacy of theoretical constructs in the crucible of practical conditions. As we navigate this terrain, collaboration emerges as a linchpin of progress—a harmonious collaboration between engineers, designers, and policymakers. Together, they orchestrate a symphony of innovation, ensuring that the chassis design borne from this endeavor seamlessly aligns with market demands, regulatory imperatives, and manufacturing capabilities in Pakistan.

CHAPTER 5 REFERENCES

- ABBASI, K. R., SHAHBAZ, M., ZHANG, J., IRFAN, M. & ALVARADO, R. J. R. E. 2022. Analyze the environmental sustainability factors of China: The role of fossil fuel energy and renewable energy. 187, 390-402.
- ADHIKARI, M., GHIMIRE, L. P., KIM, Y., ARYAL, P. & KHADKA, S. B. J. S. 2020. Identification and analysis of barriers against electric vehicle use. 12, 4850.
- AL-SHAHRI, O. A., ISMAIL, F. B., HANNAN, M. A., LIPU, M. S. H., AL-SHETWI, A. Q., BEGUM, R. A., AL-MUHSEN, N. F. O. & SOUJERI, E. 2021. Solar photovoltaic energy optimization methods, challenges and issues: A comprehensive review. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 284, 125465.
- AL SHAQSI, A. Z., SOPIAN, K. & AL-HINAI, A. 2020. Review of energy storage services, applications, limitations, and benefits. *Energy Reports*, 6, 288-306.
- ALVALI, G. T., BALBAY, A., ŞİŞMAN, T., GÜNEŞ, S. J. G. U. J. O. S. P. C. D. & TECHNOLOGY 2021. Selection of Electric Vehicle Chassis Material Using Multi-Criteria DecisionMaking Techniques. 9, 573-588.
- ATALLAH, R., KHABBAZ, M. & ASSI, C. 2016. Energy harvesting in vehicular networks: a contemporary survey. *IEEE Wireless Communications*, 23, 70-77.
- BABU, A. R., SAIRAJU, B., AMIRISHETTY, S., DEEPAK, D. J. J. O. M. E. R. & DEVELOPMENTS 2020. Automotive chassis design material selection for road and race vehicles. 43, 274-282.
- BARARI, A., TEBBY, S. & ESMAILZADEH, E. 2011. Methods to Determine Torsion Stiffness in an Automotive Chassis. *Computer-Aided Design and Applications*, 1, 67-75.
- BELLONI, M., VIGNATI, M. & SABBIONI, E. J. V. 2024. Analysing the Effect of Chassis Torsional Flexibility on the Rollover Threshold of a Multi-Purpose Agricultural Vehicle. 6, 415-432.
- BIEKER, G. J. C. 2021. A global comparison of the life-cycle greenhouse gas emissions of combustion engine and electric passenger cars. 49, 847129-102.
- BOWER, G., FLANZER, T. & KROO, I. 2011. Conceptual Design of a Small UAV for Continuous Flight Over the Ocean. 11th AIAA Aviation Technology, Integration, and Operations (ATIO) Conference. American Institute of Aeronautics and Astronautics.
- CAO, J., CHEN, X., QIU, R. & HOU, S. J. T. I. S. 2021. Electric vehicle industry sustainable development with a stakeholder engagement system. 67, 101771.
- CAO, W., BUKHARI, A. A. S. & AARNIOVUORI, L. 2019. Review of electrical motor drives for electric vehicle applications. *Mehran University Research Journal Of Engineering & Technology*, 38, 525-540.
- CASTILLO, A. & GAYME, D. F. 2014. Grid-scale energy storage applications in renewable energy integration: A survey. *Energy Conversion and Management*, 87, 885-894.

- CHAN, C. C. & WONG, Y. S. 2004. Electric vehicles charge forward. *IEEE Power and Energy Magazine*, 2, 24-33.
- CHRISTENSEN, J. & BASTIEN, C. 2016. Chapter | one Vehicle Architectures, Structures, and Safety Requirements. *In:* CHRISTENSEN, J. & BASTIEN, C. (eds.) *Nonlinear Optimization of Vehicle Safety Structures*. Oxford: Butterworth-Heinemann.
- DAGDEVIREN, S., YAVUZ, M., KOCABAS, M. O., UNSAL, E. & ESAT, V. J. I. J. O. C. 2016. Structural crashworthiness analysis of a ladder frame chassis subjected to full frontal and pole side impacts. 21, 477-493.
- DANIELSSON, O., GONZALEZ COCAÑA, A., EKSTRÖM, K., KHAKNEJAD, M., KLOMP, M. & DEKKER, R. 2016. Influence of body stiffness on vehicle dynamics characteristics.
- DELUCCHI, M., YANG, C., BURKE, A., OGDEN, J., KURANI, K., KESSLER, J., SPERLING, D. J. P. T. O. T. R. S. A. M., PHYSICAL & SCIENCES, E. 2014. An assessment of electric vehicles: technology, infrastructure requirements, greenhouse-gas emissions, petroleum use, material use, lifetime cost, consumer acceptance and policy initiatives. 372, 20120325.
- DESAI, M., SOMWANSHI, D. & JAGETIA, S. Optimal Material Selection on Designed Chassis. Applications of Artificial Intelligence Techniques in Engineering: SIGMA 2018, Volume 1, 2019. Springer, 459-467.
- ELLINGSEN, L. A.-W., SINGH, B. & STRØMMAN, A. H. J. E. R. L. 2016. The size and range effect: lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions of electric vehicles. 11, 054010.
- FALAHI, M., CHOU, H.-M., EHSANI, M., XIE, L. & BUTLER-PURRY, K. L. J. I. T. O. S. E. 2013. Potential power quality benefits of electric vehicles. 4, 1016-1023.
- FAN, E., LI, L., WANG, Z., LIN, J., HUANG, Y., YAO, Y., CHEN, R. & WU, F. 2020. Sustainable Recycling Technology for Li-Ion Batteries and Beyond: Challenges and Future Prospects. *Chemical Reviews*, 120, 7020-7063.
- FATTAL, A. 2019. Electric Vehicles in the Global Industry.
- GAFFNEY, J. S. & MARLEY, N. A. J. A. E. 2009. The impacts of combustion emissions on air quality and climate–From coal to biofuels and beyond. 43, 23-36.
- GALOS, J. & SUTCLIFFE, M. J. S. I. J. O. C. V. 2020. Material selection and structural optimization for lightweight truck trailer design. 12, 281-297.
- GHEIDAN, A. A., WAHID, M. B. A., CHUKWUNONSO, O. A. & YASIN, M. F. 2022. Impact of internal combustion engine on energy supplyand its emission reduction via sustainable fuel source.
- GIERAS, J. F. & BIANCHI, N. 2004. Electric Motors for Light Traction. *EPE Journal*, 14, 12-23.
- GUDMUNDSSON, S. 2014. Chapter 5 Aircraft Structural Layout. *In:* GUDMUNDSSON, S. (ed.) *General Aviation Aircraft Design.* Boston: Butterworth-Heinemann.

- GURJAR, M., DESHMUKH, S., GOSWAMI, S., MATHANKAR, V. & SHRIVASTAVA, S. J. A. A. S. 2019. Design and Durability Analysis of Ladder Chassis Frame.
- HANSEN, J., KHARECHA, P., SATO, M., MASSON-DELMOTTE, V., ACKERMAN, F., BEERLING, D. J., HEARTY, P. J., HOEGH-GULDBERG, O., HSU, S.-L. & PARMESAN, C. J. P. O. 2013. Assessing "dangerous climate change": Required reduction of carbon emissions to protect young people, future generations and nature. 8, e81648.
- HILL, G., HEIDRICH, O., CREUTZIG, F. & BLYTHE, P. J. A. E. 2019. The role of electric vehicles in near-term mitigation pathways and achieving the UK's carbon budget. 251, 113111.
- HOLECHEK, J. L., GELI, H. M., SAWALHAH, M. N. & VALDEZ, R. J. S. 2022. A global assessment: can renewable energy replace fossil fuels by 2050? 14, 4792.
- HOSSAIN, M. S., KUMAR, L., ISLAM, M. M. & SELVARAJ, J. J. J. O. A. T. 2022. A comprehensive review on the integration of electric vehicles for sustainable development. 2022, 1-26.
- JOHNSSON, F., KJÄRSTAD, J. & ROOTZÉN, J. J. C. P. 2019. The threat to climate change mitigation posed by the abundance of fossil fuels. 19, 258-274.
- JOU, M. 2001. Experimental Investigation of Resistance Spot Welding for Sheet Metals Used in Automotive Industry. JSME International Journal Series C Mechanical Systems, Machine Elements and Manufacturing, 44, 544-552.
- KOBELEV, V. 2019. Design and analysis of composite structures for automotive applications: chassis and drivetrain, John Wiley & Sons.
- KUMAR, L. & JAIN, S. 2014. Electric propulsion system for electric vehicular technology: A review. *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews*, 29, 924-940.
- KUNWAR, A., GURAGAI, D. & ARYAL, M. 2023. DESIGN AND ANALYSIS OF CHASSIS FRAME FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLE USING FINITE ELEMENT ANALYSIS.
- LEACH, F., KALGHATGI, G., STONE, R. & MILES, P. J. T. E. 2020. The scope for improving the efficiency and environmental impact of internal combustion engines. 1, 100005.
- LEELAKAR, K. & KRISHNARAJ, S. 2021. Design and Fabrication of Body Framing and Chassis Development of Electrical Vehicle (ATV) With Simulation Analysis. *Journal of Physics: Conference Series*, 1964, 062095.
- LI, J., CUI, Q., PANG, C., XU, P., LUO, W. & LI, J. 2024. Integrated vehicle chassis fabricated by wire and arc additive manufacturing: structure generation, printing radian optimisation, and performance prediction. *Virtual and Physical Prototyping*, 19, e2301483.
- LI, W., LONG, R., CHEN, H., GENG, J. J. R. & REVIEWS, S. E. 2017. A review of factors influencing consumer intentions to adopt battery electric vehicles. 78, 318-328.

- LÓPEZ, I., IBARRA, E., MATALLANA, A., ANDREU, J., KORTABARRIA, I. J. R. & REVIEWS, S. E. 2019. Next generation electric drives for HEV/EV propulsion systems: Technology, trends and challenges. 114, 109336.
- MALHI, Y., FRANKLIN, J., SEDDON, N., SOLAN, M., TURNER, M. G., FIELD, C. B. & KNOWLTON, N. J. P. T. O. T. R. S. B. 2020. Climate change and ecosystems: threats, opportunities and solutions. The Royal Society.
- MGBEMENA, C., OKONGWU, M., IBHADODE, A. J. F. J. O. S. & RESEARCH, I. 2019. Design Considerations for Ladder Chassis of a Lightweight Vehicle. 3, 54-66.
- MOBARAK, M. H., KLEIMAN, R. N. & BAUMAN, J. J. I. T. O. T. E. 2020. Solar-charged electric vehicles: A comprehensive analysis of grid, driver, and environmental benefits. 7, 579-603.
- MOJUMDER, M. R., AHMED ANTARA, F., HASANUZZAMAN, M., ALAMRI, B. & ALSHAREF, M. 2022. Electric Vehicle-to-Grid (V2G) Technologies: Impact on the Power Grid and Battery. *Sustainability* [Online], 14.
- MORAIS, H., SOUSA, T., SOARES, J., FARIA, P. & VALE, Z. 2015. Distributed energy resources management using plug-in hybrid electric vehicles as a fuel-shifting demand response resource. *Energy Conversion and Management*, 97, 78-93.
- MUTHYALA, M. 2019a. Design and crash analysis of ladder chassis.
- MUTHYALA, M. 2019b. *Design and Crash Analysis of Ladder Chassis*. Independent thesis Advanced level (degree of Master (Two Years)) Student thesis.
- NANAKI, E. A. & KORONEOS, C. J. J. R. E. 2016. Climate change mitigation and deployment of electric vehicles in urban areas. 99, 1153-1160.
- NAWAZ, M. U., UMAR, S., QURESHI, M. S. J. I. J. O. A. E. T. & INNOVATIONS 2024. Life Cycle Analysis of Solar-Powered Electric Vehicles: Environmental and Economic Perspectives. 1, 96-115.
- PATEL, V. & PATEL, R. 2012. Structural analysis of a ladder chassis frame.
- PRASAD U, S., RATHAN BABU, A., SAIRAJU, B., AMIRISHETTY, S. & D, D. 2020. Automotive Chassis Design Material Selection for Road and Race Vehicles. 43, 274-282.
- RAJARAJAN, C., SIVARAJ, P., SONAR, T., RAJA, S. & MATHIAZHAGAN, N. 2022. Resistance spot welding of advanced high strength steel for fabrication of thin-walled automotive structural frames. *Forces in Mechanics*, **7**, 100084.
- RAMTEKE, S., NAMBIAR, V. J. T. J. O. C. & EDUCATION, M. 2022. Material Selection Methodology for a Go-kart Chassis using FEA and Weighted Decision Matrices. 13, 539-550.
- REIMPELL, J., STOLL, H. & BETZLER, J. 2001. The automotive chassis: engineering principles, Elsevier.
- SAMPÒ, E. 2011. *Modelling chassis flexibility in vehicle dynamics simulation*, University of Surrey (United Kingdom).

- SANTOS, N. D. S. A., ROSO, V. R., MALAQUIAS, A. C. T., BAETA, J. G. C. J. R. & REVIEWS, S. E. 2021. Internal combustion engines and biofuels: Examining why this robust combination should not be ignored for future sustainable transportation. 148, 111292.
- SARKAR, T., SHARMA, M. & GAWRE, S. K. A generalized approach to design the electrical power system of a solar electric vehicle. 2014 IEEE Students' Conference on Electrical, Electronics and Computer Science, 2014. IEEE, 1-6.
- SINGH, A., SONI, V., SINGH, A. J. I. J. O. E. T. & ENGINEERING, A. 2014. Structural analysis of ladder chassis for higher strength. 4, 253-259.
- SMITH, L. M., NASSAR, S. A., GANESHMURTHY, S. & BURGUEÑO, J. 2006. Sensitivity Analysis of a Bolt-Together Vehicle Chassis. *SAE Transactions*, 115, 826-841.
- SOARES, N., MARTINS, A., CARVALHO, A., CALDEIRA, C., DU, C., CASTANHEIRA, É., RODRIGUES, E., OLIVEIRA, G., PEREIRA, G. I., BASTOS, J. J. R. & REVIEWS, S. E. 2018. The challenging paradigm of interrelated energy systems towards a more sustainable future. 95, 171-193.
- SPERLING, D. 2013. Future drive: Electric vehicles and sustainable transportation, Island Press.
- TANCO, J. S., NIELSEN, C. V., CHERGUI, A., ZHANG, W. & BAY, N. 2015. Weld nugget formation in resistance spot welding of new lightweight sandwich material. *The International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology*, 80, 1137-1147.
- TSENG, H.-K., WU, J. S. & LIU, X. J. E. P. 2013. Affordability of electric vehicles for a sustainable transport system: An economic and environmental analysis. 61, 441-447.
- TURTON, H. & BARRETO, L. J. E. P. 2006. Long-term security of energy supply and climate change. 34, 2232-2250.
- VELIE, H. D. J. U. O. M. 2016. Chassis Torsional Rigidity Analysis for a Formula SAE Racecar.
- VIGNESH, S., BHATESHVAR, Y. K., AGREWALE, M. R. B. & VORA, K. 2022. Comprehensive Design of Small Electric Vehicle for Powertrain Optimization for Optimum Range with Weight and Size Reduction. *Planning of Hybrid Renewable Energy Systems, Electric Vehicles and Microgrid: Modeling, Control and Optimization.* Springer.
- WANG, S. & HAO, J. J. J. O. E. S. 2012. Air quality management in China: Issues, challenges, and options. 24, 2-13.
- WASEEM, M., SHERWANI, A. F. & SUHAIB, M. J. S. A. S. 2019. Integration of solar energy in electrical, hybrid, autonomous vehicles: a technological review. 1, 1-14.
- ZHANG, R. & FUJIMORI, S. J. E. R. L. 2020. The role of transport electrification in global climate change mitigation scenarios. 15, 034019.

- ZHANG, X., BAI, X. & SHANG, J. J. J. O. C. P. 2018. Is subsidized electric vehicles adoption sustainable: Consumers' perceptions and motivation toward incentive policies, environmental benefits, and risks. 192, 71-79.
- ZHAO, Y., POHL, O., BHATT, A. I., COLLIS, G. E., MAHON, P. J., RÜTHER, T. & HOLLENKAMP, A. F. 2021. A Review on Battery Market Trends, Second-Life Reuse, and Recycling. *Sustainable Chemistry* [Online], 2.
- ZHOU, N., PRICE, L., YANDE, D., CREYTS, J., KHANNA, N., FRIDLEY, D., LU, H., FENG, W., LIU, X. & HASANBEIGI, A. J. A. E. 2019. A roadmap for China to peak carbon dioxide emissions and achieve a 20% share of non-fossil fuels in primary energy by 2030. 239, 793-819.